
          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

      Click link to join meeting:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84473214330 
      Meeting ID:                             844 7321 4330 

 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, October 12, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, October 12, 2021 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 27, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 27, 2021 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
4.1 Bruce Blackwell, Principal, B.A. Blackwell & Associates, presentation regarding 
 Belcarra Community Wildfire Resiliency Plan 
 Recommendation: 
 That the presentation provided by Bruce Blackwell, Principal, B.A. Blackwell & 
 Associates, regarding Belcarra Community Wildfire Resiliency Plan be received 
 for information. 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VIA Zoom 
October 12, 2021 

7:00 PM 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84473214330


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\2.1 2021 10 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Village of 
 Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw              
 No. 589, 2021, be read a third time. 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 12, 2021, 
regarding Introduction of a Development Enquiry Research Fee & Changes to 
the Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 

 Recommendation: 
 That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 590, 2021 be read a first time. 
 
5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated October 12, 2021, 
 regarding Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
 Recommendations: 
 Pursuant to the Village issuing new Highway Encroachment Agreements 
 consistent with the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) 2020 Recreational 
 Docks Program: 

a) That the Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment – Marine Ave and 
 Senkler Road Bylaw No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021 be 
 read a first time. 

b) That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 592, 2021 (HEA) be read a first time. 

c) That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 205: Group Wharfage 
 Facilities be rescinded; and 

 That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 216: Bedwell Bay Wharf 
 Application Guidelines be approved. 
d) That staff be directed to begin accepting applications when policies are approved 

 and applicable bylaws are adopted for new Highway Encroachment Agreements 
 which will enable access and development of wharfage facilities; and  

 That priority be given to applications for group wharfage facilities; and  
 That only one completed application be accepted and processed at a time. 
 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
 Mayor’s Reports 
6.1 Grand Opening Port Coquitlam Community Centre (PCCC) held on    

October 2, 2021 
• 205,000 sq. ft. 
• Vibrant Community Hub 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\2.1 2021 10 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6.2 Ioco Ghost Town Days, hosted by the Port Moody Heritage Society, held on 
 October 3, 2021 

• Mary Anne Cooper, 106 years old 
6.3 Tri-Cities Chamber of Commerce Mayor’s BBQ, October 14, 2021 

 Council Committees  
 Water Committee 
6.4 Ian Devlin, Chair, Water Committee, letter dated September 26, 2021, regarding 

Technical Brief #2  
 Recommendation: 
 That the Technical Brief #2, dated September 26, 2021, provided by Ian Devlin, 

Chair, Water Committee, be received for information. 

7. BYLAWS 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.6 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
 No items. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Troy Clifford, Provincial President, Ambulance Paramedics of BC, letter dated 
 September 22, 2021, regarding Thank You for Meeting at UBCM and Follow Up 
8.2 Don Reid, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 23, 2021, regarding Park 
 Designation on Turtlehead Road and Invasive Species (full report available at the 
 Village office) 
8.3 Rhonda Vanderfluit, Registrar, Youth Parliament of BC Alumni Society, 
 Sponsoring the BC Youth Parliament, email dated September 27, 2021 regarding 
 93rd BC Youth Parliament (full report available at the Village office) 
8.4 Cathy Peters, BC Anti-Human Trafficking Educator, Speaker, Advocate, email 
 dated September 26, 2021 regarding Global Virtual Summit on the Impact of 
 Pornography on Youth and Children “Connect to Protect” – please attend 
 October 13-15, 2021 (full report available at the Village office) 
8.5 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated September 30, 2021 regarding 
 Village Donations  
8.6 Stephanie Snider, Manager, Marine Engagement, Trans Mountain Expansion 
 Project, email dated October 4, 2021, regarding Westridge Update – Marine 
 Construction Safety Boom (full report available at the Village office)  

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  October 12, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\2.1 2021 10 12 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the October 12, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 
 (c)  labour relations or other employee relations; 

(k)  negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed 
provision of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and 
that, in the view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm 
the interests of the municipality if they were held in public.” 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the October 12, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 



           
 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell  
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator 
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

L. Dysart provided an overview of the first National Day for Truth and Reconciliation that will 
be held on September 30, 2021. The day honours the lost children and survivors of residential 
schools, their families and communities. The Village office will be closed in recognition of this 
day. 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 Mayor Ross called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 27, 2021 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, September 27, 2021, be approved    

as circulated. 
     CARRIED  

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES  
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, September 7, 2021 
 Moved by:   Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held September 7, 2021 be 

adopted. 
CARRIED 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

Via Zoom 
 September 27, 2021 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2021 

Page 2 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No Items. 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 27, 2021, regarding 

Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
 L. Dysart provided an overview of amendments to Managing Trees, Views & 

Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021. Considerable discussion ensued on various aspects 
of the Bylaw.  

 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded:   Councillor Wilder 
 That the following words be removed from Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021, page 3, item 8.4: 
  “An applicant may re-apply to prune or trim the same trees(s) on an annual basis       

 for no additional charge. The original application approval must be presented 
 to the municipal staff and receive an updated stamp of approval.” 

CARRIED 
  Moved by:  Councillor Clark 

 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
a) That the amendments outlined in yellow on Managing Trees, Views & 

Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021, proposed by Councillor Drake, be approved. 
CARRIED 

  Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

b) That Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 be read a 
second time as amended. 

CARRIED 

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 27, 2021, 
 regarding Tree Committee Recommendations 
 L. Dysart outlined the report and noted that these recommendations will be completed 
 as time permits. Discussion ensued. 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That Council approve the recommendations from the Tree Committee as listed 
 below: 

a) That staff write a letter to the Province recommending a ban on the sale of 
invasive plants by garden centers; 

b) That staff write a letter to the UBCM to be considered at a Conference requesting 
that garden centers discontinue sale of invasive species plants; 

c) That staff develop a plan to expand the current invasive species removal program 
taking place on the foreshore to include the removal of all types of Ivy and Laurel, 
Himalayan blackberry & Holly; 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2021 

Page 3 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

d) That staff write a letter to Metro Vancouver Parks regarding a policy for fuel 
management and the removal of underbrush, dangerous trees etc. on parkland 
bordering the Village in order to create a buffer zone.  

e) That staff write a letter to the Provincial Government and coordinate with the BC 
Wildfire Service Department regarding fuel management and the removal of 
underbrush, dangerous trees etc. on Crown Land bordering the Village in order to 
create a buffer zone.  

f) That staff write letters to Anmore and Port Moody with regard to fuel management 
and dangerous trees etc. on property bordering the Village and Bedwell Bay 
Road; and 

 That where appropriate, letters be drafted for the signature of the Mayor. 
CARRIED 

5.3 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 
September 27, 2021, regarding Patching and Paving, MRN and Non MRN Roads 

 S. Novak outlined the report. Council asked pertinent questions. 
 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Drake 

 That a quote from Sandpiper Contracting Ltd., dated September 14, 2021, for the mill 
 and fill patching and paving at miscellaneous sites, as identified by Public Works 
 staff, be approved in the amount of $23,200.00 plus GST.     

CARRIED 
5.4 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 

September 27, 2021, regarding Capital Budget, Paving on Midden Road 
 S. Novak outlined the report. Discussion ensued. It was noted that the Request for 

Proposal (RFP) should provide for two quotes. One quote provided for Belcarra Bay 
Road and Midden Road and one quote for only the Belcarra Bay Road portion of the 
project. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
 That staff advertise a Request for Proposal (RFP) for 2 price quotes on paving that 
 include: 

• A full depth mill and fill, and 75mm asphalt regrading gravel base for Midden Road 
 and Belcarra Bay Road from Midden Road to the 3 way stop sign; and 

• A full depth mill and fill, and 75mm asphalt regrading gravel base for Midden Road. 
CARRIED  

5.5 Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, report dated 
September 27, 2021, regarding Municipal Hall Parking 

 S. Novak outlined the report. At a Regular meeting of Council held on July 5, 2021, 
Council established that the Village Hall parking lot would be “Resident Only Parking 
and Permit Parking Only” until the end of September 2021. 

 Mayor Ross noted that Councillors Clark & Wilder will be holding a Public Information 
meeting on Parking as per the Strategic Plan. 

  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2021 

Page 4 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Snell 
 That staff remove the Resident Only signs and retain the policy as seasonal, from      
 June 1 to September 30 each year. 

   DEFEATED 
Mayor Ross, Councillors Clark, Drake and Snell voted in opposition  

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder 
 That staff keep the “Resident Only Parking and Permit Only Parking” signs posted in 
 the Village Hall parking lot until a Public Information Meeting on Parking is held. 

CARRIED  

 6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
 Mayor’s Reports 
6.1 UBCM update including discussions with two Cabinet Ministers 
 Mayor Ross and L. Dysart met with Honourable Minister David Eby and Honourable 

Minister Lisa Beare on Zoom meetings during the 2021 UBCM Conference.  
 The meeting with Minister Eby was related to the potential for a sprinkler bylaw. The 

Minister was very supportive of the Village request. Ministry Staff will follow up with     
L. Dysart. 

 Discussion with Minister Beare was in regard to: 
• A request for the Ministry to assist with increased connectivity for homes in the 

area that do not have access to high speed internet, particularly the Farrer Cove 
area.  

• A request for additional information regarding the sale of a BC Hydro tower in 
the area. 

 Minister Beare was very supportive of improving connectivity to the Village. 

6.2 Federal Election  
 Mayor Ross thanked Nelly Shin, MP, for her support during the time she served as 

Member of Parliament for the area. Mayor Ross offered congratulations to incoming 
MP Bonita Zarrillo who will be invited to a Council meeting at a later date. 

6.3 BC Law Enforcement Memorial – Legislature Victoria 
 Mayor Ross provided an overview of his attendance at the BC Law Enforcement 

Memorial held at the Legislature in Victoria on September 26, 2021. 

6.4 Councillor Drake – Water Committee 
 Councillor Drake provided an update on a Water Committee meeting held on Zoom on 

September 22, 2021. A link will be posted on the website to the meeting. He noted that 
the Water Committee is shifting from committee status to an advisory board.  

 Ian Devlin, Water Committee Chair, advised that Technical Brief #2 has been provided 
to the CAO. 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2021 

Page 5 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 L. Dysart advised that Technical Brief #2 will be brought forward to the next Regular 
Council meeting. She advised that links to past Water Committee meeting videos will 
be posted on the website. Discussion ensued. 

 L. Dysart advised that WSP (formerly OPUS / Dayton Knight) will be the engineers      
for the Village Water System. They have extensive knowledge of the water system.      
Chris Boit, ISL Engineering, will be the engineer for other engineering requirements     
in the Village such as Roads, Trails, etc. 

The meeting recessed at 8:52 pm and reconvened at 9:00 pm. 

7. BYLAWS 
7.1 VILLAGE OF BELCARRA Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 588, 2021 
 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Council Procedure Bylaw No. 356, 2004, Amendment 
 Bylaw No. 588, 2021” be adopted. 

   CARRIED  
8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 
 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.9 be received. 

CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Andrew Hory, Chair & Area B Director, Sandra Daniels, Area A Director, James 
 Furney, Area C Director & Rod Sherrell, Area D Director, Regional District of 
 Mount Waddington, letter dated August 27, 2021, regarding Rebuilding the 
 Village of Lytton 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That Council approve a donation in the amount of $500.00 to assist Rebuilding the 
 Village of Lytton. 

CARRIED 
8.2 Mitzi Dean, Minister of Children & Family Development, email dated               

September 10, 2021, regarding the declaration of October 2021 as “Foster Family 
Month” in British Columbia 

 Councillor Wilder requested that Dave Warren, Community Recreation Association of 
Belcarra (CRAB) President, post the declaration of “Foster Family Month” on the CRAB 
marquee.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

That October 2021 be declared as “Foster Family Month” in the Village of Belcarra. 
CARRIED 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  September 27, 2021 

Page 6 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 
 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.3 Troy Clifford, Provincial President, Ambulance Paramedics & Emergency Dispatchers 
 of BC, letter dated September 3, 2021, regarding Emergency Paramedics & 
 Dispatchers: Who we are and what we do! 

8.4 Jude Crasta, Program Manager, Moving in A Livable Region, SFU Morris J Wosk 
 Centre for Dialogue, letter dated September 7, 2021, regarding A Civic Literacy 
 Campaign on Mobility Pricing Across Metro Vancouver  

8.5 Nicole Magas, Publicist – ZG Stories, email dated September 7, 2021, regarding 
 Volunteer Drives for Cancer Patients – Service Expansion to Include Our Community 
 Now 

8.6 Katrina Chen, Minister of State for Child Care, email dated September 13, 2021, 
 regarding Childcare BC New Spaces Fund 

8.7 Colleen & Ian MacDonald, Belcarra Residents, email dated September 13, 2021, 
 regarding Please Vote YES for a Safe Passing Distance Law at the UBCM  

8.8 Cheryl Papove, Belcarra Resident, email dated September 15, 2021, regarding Safe 
 Passing Distance 

8.9 Kelly Kenney, Corporate Officer, City of Langley, letter to Honourable Josie Osborne, 
 Minister of Municipal Affairs, dated September 15, 2021, regarding Appointment of 
 Directors to Regional District Board (full report available at the Village office) 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 L. Dysart advised that Ali Sunderani, who was a Public Works and Water Operator, is 
 no longer employed by the Village. She noted that the position will be reposted. 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, queried with regard to current staff being 
 considered for the Public Works, Water Operator position. 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the September 27, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:11 pm. 

CARRIED      
Certified Correct: 
 

 
 

 
 

   

Jamie Ross 
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart  
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 

      
 

A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes 
 

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Belcarra has determined it necessary to provide for the 
management of tree cutting and tree protection activities. 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter - Part 2, Division 1, Fundamental powers, 
Section 8, (3) “A Council may, by Bylaw, regulate, prohibit and impose requirements in relation to the 
following (c) trees”.  

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting assembled enacts as 
follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & 
Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021".         

2. Definitions 
 In this Bylaw, unless the context indicates otherwise: 

“A plan for tree planting if applicable”: The Village will not allow to be planted on 
municipal land trees that will grow to a height that could impede utilities, signage visibility, 
safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any municipal infrastructure in the ground.  

“Affected Property Owner” means any adjacent property owner and any direct property 
owner as determined by the Public Works Manager whose line of sight or proximate 
enjoyment, including but not limited to views, aesthetics, and shade, may be affected if a tree 
cutting or pruning application is approved. 

“Certified Arborist” means a person certified by the International Society of Arboriculture 
(ISA) or the National Arborist Association as an arborist.  

“Crown” means the entire system of branches, leaves and reproductive structures of a tree 
extending away from the trunk or main stem(s). 

Hazardous Tree” means any tree which, due to its location, condition or any other 
circumstance, has been determined, by a Registered Certified Arborist, ISA approved, or as 
determined by the Public Works Manager, to present a hazard to the safety of persons, private 
property or any other tree(s).  

“Permit” shall mean tree removal / pruning permit issued in the form of Schedule “C”.  

“Pruning” means the trimming of living or dead parts from a tree in order to reduce size, 
maintain the shape and health of the tree and maintain view corridors.  

“Regular Maintenance Plan” is to manage tree growth and health on a schedule created and 
executed by the Public Works Manager in consultation with a Certified Arborist as from time to 
time deemed advisable and approved by Council.  

“Shrub” is a woody plant which is smaller than a tree and has several main stems arising at or 
near the ground, less than 6 m -10 m in height.  

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                       2 
         
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 
2021.doc 
 

“Tree” means a woody perennial plant having one or more stems, with at least one stem having 
a diameter of 20 centimetres or more, measured at 1.4 metres above the natural grade on the 
uphill side of the tree.  

“Tree Cutting Permit” means a permit issued by the Administrator in accordance with this 
Bylaw, which will allow cutting or pruning of trees under conditions stipulated in the Bylaw. 

A permit is only a permission pursuant to this Bylaw and does not relieve the permit holder 
from complying with all other laws, regulations and requirements of any public authority 
having jurisdiction, nor relieve the holder from complying with civil, common law or 
contractual obligations.  

“Tree Cutting and Replacement Plan” means a plan which shows the trees proposed to be 
cut and the location, size (height and diameter) and approved species of replacement trees to be 
planted upon a subject site to ensure slope retention and/or prevent water migration.  

“Hazard Tree” is a tree which is likely to fail due to Major Structural Weaknesses, adverse site 
conditions or other external factors under average conditions & has the Potential to Strike a 
Target.  

“Replacement Tree” means any tree or shrub, that is shown on a Tree Cutting and Replacement 
Plan as a replacement for a tree which has been cut down.  

“Tree Removal” means the cutting down of the entire tree.   

“Tree Survey” means a plan of a subject site showing the location, species and trunk diameter 
of the tree to be cut or pruned. 

“Tree Topping” means to entirely sever the stem of a tree such that the upper stem and 
branches of the tree are completely removed, resulting in an abruptly truncated stem, and 
topping and topped shall have corresponding meanings. 

3.    Application of Bylaw 
3.1  This bylaw applies to all trees on municipal land within the Belcarra boundary, except as 

provided in Section 3.2. 

3.2  This bylaw does not apply to: 

 (a) Trees on private property. 

(b) Trees that are cut, removed, or damaged pursuant to the Hydro and Power Authority Act, 
      RSBC 1996, c.212, or the Oil and Gas Activities Act, SBC 2008, c.36;  

(c) Trees on municipal-owned property or roadways that are cut or removed by the    
      Municipality or its authorized agents in accordance with approved Municipal policies. 

(d) Any provisions imposed by the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) relating to fire 
 safety and immediate life safety risk. 

4.    Prohibitions  

4.1 No person may cut, prune, or remove a tree on municipal land without first having obtained a 
Tree Cutting Permit. 

4.2 No person shall breach the terms and conditions of Tree Cutting Permit as written. 
  



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                       3 
         
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 
2021.doc 
 

5.    Exemptions 

5.1 Hazardous Trees as defined in Section 3 ‘Definitions’ will be assessed and removed as deemed 
necessary by the Public Works Department. 

• Any immediate life safety hazards involving trees, or trees and hydroelectric power must 
call 911. 

6.    Contraventions 

6.1  Where a tree is cut in contravention of this Bylaw and / or conditions of a permit are breached, 
an offence or bylaw contravention is committed under this Bylaw: 

  (a) A person who contravenes any provision of this Bylaw, or who willfully does not adhere to 
the bylaws, or cuts a tree on municipal property, contrary to or without a permit, is guilty of an 
offence or bylaw contravention and is liable to the penalties imposed under this Bylaw and may 
be subject of up to $1,000 for the first offence, and $1,000 each subsequent offence. For large 
scale offences, fines may be imposed up to $10,000. 

7.    Professional Assessment 

7.1 Prior to the issuance of a permit, the Village at its discretion, may require the applicant to 
provide, at the expense of the applicant, a certified report by a professional arborist and/or 
geotechnical engineer, stating that the proposed cutting of trees will not create any type of 
hazard such as flooding, erosion etc. 

7.2 Permit conditions may specify measures that need to be undertaken by the applicant resulting 
from recommendations of a professional report. 

8.    Application for Permit 

8.1 Applications for a permit on Municipal property may be submitted by any Belcarra property 
owner wishing to improve their views. 

8.2 Permit Applications shall be submitted to Municipal Staff and approved by the Public Works 
Coordinator. 

8.3 At the time of the permit application, the applicant shall pay to the Village an application fee as 
per the Fees and Charges Bylaw. 

8.4 An applicant may re-apply to prune or trim the same tree(s) on an annual basis. The original 
application approval must be presented to the municipal staff and receive an updated stamp of 
approval. 

8.5 If conditions of the tree or shrub cutting application change in Section 8 for any reason, or if 
the terms of the permit are not upheld, the CAO or Manager of Public Works may terminate the 
application. 

9.  Tree Cutting Permit  

An example of the Tree Cutting Permit is provided in ‘Schedule A’ of this document. 

9.1 No person may cut, prune or remove a tree on municipal land without first having obtained a 
Tree Cutting Permit. 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                       4 
         
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 
2021.doc 
 

9.2 The applicant shall provide a detailed description of the proposed work including a statement of 
purpose and rationale. 

9.3  A clearly labelled photograph of the tree(s) must be provided, and if pruning is required, a line 
must be drawn on the photograph indicating the extent of the proposed pruning. The subject 
tree must also have a ribbon marker.  

9.4 If relevant, a proposed replanting plan indicating location, species and size of tree, bush and 
shrub that is to be planted to replace the removed tree. The tree, bush or shrub may be planted 
in the same location or in another area agreed upon by Village Staff.  

9.5 Non-refundable permit application fees are payable prior to issuance of a permit. Once the 
permit is issued, it is valid for the work to be completed within 6 months.  

9.6 The name of the insured tree cutting contractor, must be provided with the date and time of the 
planned work. A plan for tree planting, if applicable, must also be submitted.  

9.7 The Village will not allow trees to be planted that will grow to a height that could impede 
utilities and signage visibility, safety and the enjoyment of views, or interfere with any 
municipal infrastructure on municipal land.  

9.8 The applicant shall confirm that any directly affected property owners in the area of the 
proposed tree pruning or cutting, have been notified and advised that any opinions they wish to 
express may be sent in writing to the Public Works Manager within 15 working days of their 
notification. 

9.9 All written information to be attached to the application by the applicant, including if the 
applicant wishes to maintain a previously trimmed tree. Submission of pictures may be 
required. 

10. Tree Replacement 

Replacement trees may be required as a condition of the permit. Trees selected for replacement 
must be a low growing tree (under 35 feet tall) and conform to Belcarra’s wildfire interface 
strategies. See Schedule ‘B’ for the list of accepted trees. 

11.   Security Deposit 

11.1 The Village may require the applicant for the permit to provide security by, at the applicant's 
option, an irrevocable letter of credit or the deposit of securities in a form satisfactory to the 
local government, in an amount stated in the permit. 

12.  The “Village of Belcarra Tree Cutting Bylaw No. 110, 1987” is hereby repealed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021                       5 
         
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 
2021.doc 
 

 
Read a First Time on September 7, 2021 
 
Read a Second Time on September 27, 2021 
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 

 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views  
& Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 



 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
SCHEDULE “A” 

 
Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application 

Name of Applicant: _________________________________________________________ 

Address of Applicant: _______________________________________________________ 

Application date: _______________________Tree Permit No.: ______________________  

Permit Application Fee: $200 (Non-refundable payment) 

Clean Up Deposit: $300 (Refundable upon satisfactory completion of project. Payable upon 
granting of permit.  

Civic address: ________________________________________________________  
(Location of work near / adjacent to municipal property)  

• Describe the proposed tree work: List number and type of subject trees, proximity to creeks 
and relevant site information as available, including photographs.  

* Note - A survey prepared by a designated British Columbia Land Surveyor may be required 
 in consideration of this application.  

 
Type of trees, shrubs or branches to be removed:  

______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Remove: _____ Chip on site: _____   

Photographs attached:  Yes _____ No _____   

Additional comments: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________  

Applicant: Based on your proposed tree work, complete the following information in the 
appropriate section of either Low Impact or Moderate Impact.  

LOW IMPACT:  

1. Removal of up to a maximum of 4 single trees that are less than 6 meters in height  

______________________________________________________________________  

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
Schedule A  

Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit 
Application 

 

  



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      2  
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 589 2021.doc 
 

2. Removal of hedges or shrubs, (less than 5 meters in height) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

3. Removal of branches from a tree/s that does not significantly alter aesthetic appearance of the 
area  

_____________________________________________________________________ 

4. Re-topping of tree that does not result in removal of more than 5 meters of new growth 

       ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

MODERATE IMPACT:  

1. Removal of hedge greater than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

2. Removal of more than 4 trees that are less than 5 meters in height  

_______________________________________________________________________  

3. Pruning of branches that will result in significant Aesthetic impact to surrounding area   
_______________________________________________________________________  

4. Removal of a tree greater than 6 meters in height  

      _______________________________________________________________________  

 

CONSENT REQUIREMENTS:  

Owner’s declaration:  
 

I/We, _________________________________________(Owner’s name)  of 
_________________________________________ Owner’s address Owner’s  

email: _____________________________Phone: ______________________________  

Owner’s signature: __________________________________  

Confirm the appointment of ___________________________________ a Municipal 
approved tree contractor, to act on my behalf, with regard to this application.  

Contractor’s name_________________________ Phone: __________________  

Email: __________________________________ 

Contractor’s Signature _____________________________ 

 



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      3  
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 589 2021.doc 
 

Neighbors consent: 
 

Name: ___________________________________ 

Phone Number: _____________________________ 

Address: __________________________________ 

 

Name: ___________________________________  

Phone Number: _____________________________ 

Address: __________________________________ 

 

* Neighbor disagreements may be brought before Council or result in permit cancelation. * 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  

1. The applicant must provide a non-refundable permit fee of $200.  

2. The applicant is fully responsible for any damages to private or municipal property, BC      
Hydro or telephone infrastructure. Costs will be paid by the applicant.  

3. The applicant is responsible for providing an accurate description of the location of the trees 
in relation to relevant property lines.  

4. Any disputes between individuals over liabilities arising from tree problems or the work 
authorized by this permit, shall be settled by the individuals involved, and at their expense.  

5. The applicant agrees to indemnify and save the Municipality harmless from all cost,  
claims, damages, or expenses arising from the work authorized by the permit or by actions of 
the applicant.  

6. The applicant understands that:  

• The contractor / tree cutting firm must be approved by the Municipality for work on  
    municipal property.  
• Trees must be clearly tagged by the applicant for consideration by the Municipality. 
   Untagged trees will not be considered.  
• Neighbors adjacent to the proposed work must be notified and given an explanation  
  of the proposed work and sign the consent form prior to submission of application (in   
   conformance with Belcarra’s policies and procedures).  
• No work may proceed until this application has been approved and a tree cutting permit 

issued.  
• All costs associated with this application are to be borne by the applicant.  
• After receipt of the application, a site visit by the municipality will be conducted and may  
  be scheduled with the appropriate tree contractor.  



Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      4  
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 589 2021.doc 
 

7. After approval of the proposed tree work, the applicant is required to notify the Municipality at 
least 48 hours prior to commencing work.  

8. This permit can be revoked at any time by the Municipality.  

9. The tree permit must be onsite at all times during work.  

10. No debris is to be left on municipal property.  

11. Any work inside the limits of approach to hydro lines will be undertaken by a utility  
certified tree company.  

12. All approved pruning work will be completed according to the standards of the  
International Society of Arboriculture.  

13. To request a final inspection, email belcarra@belcarra.ca or phone 604-937-4100 

14. This permit expires 6 months from the date of the application approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Notice: The personal information on this form is collected under the 
authority of the Community Charter or Local Government Act, as applicable.  It is related directly to and required by the 
Village to process your Tree Cutting Permit Application and associated administration and to contact you as may be 
required. The personal information is protected pursuant to the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. If 
you have any questions, please contact the Administrator at 604-937-4100. 

mailto:belcarra@belcarra.ca


Municipal Property Tree Cutting Permit Application                                                                      5  
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw 
No. 589 2021.doc 
 

 

                                                                                                                 
 

 
Schedule of Replacement Trees as listed below:  

Cherry  

Crape Myrtle 

Dogwood  

Franklin tree 

Chinese Fringe Tree 

Green Hawthorn 

Hornbeam 

Panicle Hydrangea 

Juniper 

Japanese Snowball 

Laburnum 

Lilac 

Lemon tree 

Mountain Stewartia 

Magnolia 

Japanese Red Maple 

Japanese Black Pine 

Cherry Plum 

 Eastern Redbud 

 Quince 

 June Berry 

 Conica Spruce 

 Japanese Stewartia 

 Cornus Florida     
(flowering dogwood) 

 Cornelia Cherry Dogwood

 

Locations: 
 
1. Marine Avenue Foreshore: Land between the road shoulder and high tide is considered to 

sensitive and has the potential to impact marine life. An assessment from a QEP (Qualified 
Environmental Protection Consultant) will be required for all tree cutting permits in the area 
prior to permit approvals. 
All tree replanting recommendations by the QEP will come from the tree replanting list 
above, (Schedule B). 

 
2. Bedwell Bay Road: Land between the road shoulder and residential property line; An 

Engineer or QEP may be required prior to permit approvals due to slope considerations. All 
tree replanting requirements will be selected from Schedule B. All Tree or hedge replanting 
will be aligned so that a minimum 1.8-meter road shoulder can be maintained at tree 
maturity.  
      

3. Municipal Road Ends: The Public Works Manager may require an assessment from a 
Geotechnical Engineer or a QEP prior to Permit approval due to slope and drainage 
conditions. Schedule B tree replacement will only be required upon QEP recommendation. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA  
Managing Trees, Views & Landscapes 

Bylaw No. 589, 2021 
Schedule B 

Replacement Trees 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: October 12, 2021  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Introduction of a Development Enquiry Research Fee & Changes to the            

Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 
 
 
Recommendation  
That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw        
No. 590, 2021 be read a first time. 
 
Purpose 
To amend the Fees and Charges Bylaw to add a Development Enquiry Research Fee to cover staff 
time for complex and time-consuming enquiries that are not related to a rezoning application. 
 
The proposed Development Enquiry Research Fee is to be combined with the existing               
Pre-Application Fee for Review of Large Rezoning Applications and reflected as “Development 
Enquiry Research Fee / Pre-Application Fee for Review of Large Rezoning Applications” in the 
Fees and Charges Bylaw. 
 
Background 
Recently the Village has been receiving non-rezoning related enquiries that have been complex 
and time-consuming, requiring the need to do additional research and/or outreach to external 
groups and agencies. For example, requests have been received from Fortis and telecommunication 
companies regarding the installation of services within the Village, and property information 
requests for complicated sites. 
 
The Development Enquiry Research Fee is proposed to be charged to the enquirer in order to 
cover staff time needed to look into and review these more complex enquiries.  
 
Various municipalities, including the Village of Anmore and the City of Port Moody, charge a 
fee for research into municipal records, property information, and other time consuming 
research. The amount of the fee is based on the amount of time spent on the enquiry.  
 
Proposed Amendment to the Fees and Charges Bylaw 
The Fees and Charges Bylaw currently has a flat fee of $500 for a Pre-Application Fee for 
Review of Large Rezoning Applications under Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and Development 
Services. 
 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Introduction of a Development Enquiry Research Fee  
October 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.2 L. Dysart - Introduction of a Development Enquiry 
Research Fee.docx 

The proposed amendment will add “Development Enquiry Research Fee” to the same line item 
to form the following:  
 “Description: Development Enquiry Research Fee / Pre-Application Fee for Review of 
 Large Rezoning Applications where it is determined by the Chief Administrative Officer 
 (CAO) that research may involve staff time in excess of 15 minutes. 
  Fee:  
  First hour - $100 
  Each additional 15mins or portion thereof $20 
 Where it is determined that a fee may be assessed, the applicant will be provided with a 
 fee estimate prior to the requested work being initiated.” 
 
 
Attachment 
Attachment 1: Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment 1 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.2 Attachment 1 - Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment 
Bylaw - October 2021.docx 

 
 

 

 
An amendment bylaw to introduce a Development Enquiry Research Fee for complex enquiries.  

 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 
a) By adding the following to the table under Schedule 8 – Planning, Land and 

Development Services:  
 

[Description] [Fee] 
Development Enquiry Research Fee/Pre-
Application Fee for Review of Large Rezoning 
Applications - Where it is determined by the 
Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) that research 
may involve staff time in excess of 15 minutes. 
 
Where it is determined that a fee may be assessed, 
the applicant will be provided with a fee estimate 
prior to the requested work being initiated.  

First hour - $100 
Each additional 15mins or portion thereof $20 
 
 

 
Read a First Time on  

Read a Second Time on 

Read a Third Time on  
 

ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 
Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 
 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  

Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021 



  
COUNCIL REPORT  

   
Date: October 12, 2021  
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
 
Subject: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Pursuant to the Village issuing new Highway Encroachment Agreements consistent with the 
Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) 2020 Recreational Docks Program: 
a) That the Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment – Marine Ave and Senkler Road Bylaw 

No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021 be read a first time. 
 

b) That the Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw      
No. 592, 2021 (HEA) be read a first time. 
 

c) That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 205: Group Wharfage Facilities be 
rescinded; and 
That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 216: Bedwell Bay Wharf Application 
Guidelines be approved. 
 

d) That staff be directed to begin accepting applications when policies are approved and applicable 
bylaws are adopted for new Highway Encroachment Agreements which will enable access and 
development of wharfage facilities; and  
That priority be given to applications for group wharfage facilities; and  
That only one completed application be accepted and processed at a time. 
 

Background and Purpose 
In June of 2020, the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) lifted a moratorium on 
applications for new recreational dock facilities within the federal waters that it manages, 
including Bedwell Bay. At the Regular Council meeting of July 20, 2020, staff advised they 
would review Village policies and provide a report to Council with proposed revisions to: 

• Village procedures to reflect the new VFPA rules for recreational docks; and, 
• Village fees for processing Highway Encroachment Agreements (HEA) and wharf 

applications with a view to recovering annual Village costs. 
The purpose of this report is to bring forward for Council consideration these proposed revisions 
to procedures and fees along with housekeeping updates to the relevant Village bylaws and 
corporate policies. 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
October 12, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 2021 10 12 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report.docx 

In addition, in September 2020, amendments were made to the Village Official Community Plan 
(OCP) to allow the new VFPA rules and regulations to be introduced for the Bedwell Bay area  
where dock heads need to be located and founded on Marine Avenue, Senkler Road and Village 
property. As part of this OCP amendment process, the Tsleil Waututh Nation and nearby 
Municipalities, Metro Vancouver and VFPA were all notified of this amendment and invited to 
comment. The Tsleil Waututh advised that they are working with VFPA to develop an 
acceptable process for their engagement with the VFPA on new recreational docks. 
Discussion 
The review of existing Village policies and procedures found that most were generally compatible 
with the new VFPA rules. One change, agreed upon with VFPA, is that the Village will hold all 
Recreational Waterfront Agreements with VFPA rather than just those for group wharfage facilities 
as is current practice. As the Village is the owner of the immediate upland property, the VFPA 
preference is to hold their agreement directly with the Village. More substantial changes to existing 
policies are proposed in order to simplifying the Village administrative process and eliminate 
redundancies between applicable policies. The following discussion presents the more significant 
considerations and changes proposed for updating the applicable policies and procedures. Other 
changes to existing policies may be considered as housekeeping updates. 
 
Location of New Wharf Facilities 
Previously, the Village had identified a limited number of potential locations for new single and 
group wharves in Bedwell Bay and seven of these locations remain. While the new VFPA 
guidelines suggest that additional locations may be considered, they have expressed a preference for 
shared and group wharfages to reduce the overall number of new wharf facilities and related 
environmental impacts. Consequently, staff do not propose any increase for potential locations of 
new wharfage facilities at this time. However, staff do recommend Council consider applications 
for group wharfage facilities in areas currently identified for single docks only based on the merits 
of a specific application. Giving preference to group facilities over single facilities will enable more 
Belcarra property owners to enjoy a wharf facility for recreational purposes while limiting the 
footprint of new wharf infrastructure. 
 
Council Decisions 
In the interest of reducing administrative activities and related costs with the Bedwell Bay Wharf 
Program, staff are proposing changes to simplify the application procedure. One such change 
enables Council to consider an application and make a decision just once during the application 
process rather than twice as is currently required. The existing Highway Encroachment Area 
(HEA) Bylaw requires staff to bring forward the application to Council with a recommendation 
for an initial decision. If Council approves the application at that time, staff are required to bring 
forward the application a second time to Council after the applicant obtains authorization from 
VFPA. This second review by Council was to ensure the applicant received their permit from 
VFPA and to authorize staff to sign the necessary agreements. This same purpose can be 
achieved with the first review of the application by Council by making any approval subject to 
various conditions such as the applicant first obtaining authorization from VFPA. 
 
Recognizing Jurisdictions 
Some proposed changes to the Village wharf application procedures are intended to recognize 
VFPA jurisdiction in regulating development within the foreshore and waters of Bedwell Bay 
and the Village consenting role as upland property owner. One such change is to remove the 
requirement for applicants of group wharfage facilities to apply for a zoning bylaw amendment. 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
October 12, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 2021 10 12 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report.docx 

As a zoning bylaw amendment is not required to accommodate access structures on the 
municipal land in the HEA and the Village does not have zoning responsibilities over the 
foreshore and waters managed by VFPA, this step is neither necessary nor enforceable. 
 
Rationalizing Documents 
Existing policies and procedures evolved over time with new policies being introduced as 
needed. As a result, the policies and procedures active today contain some redundancies and 
conflicting requirements as well as information that is out of date. To address these deficiencies 
and ensure that applicable policies are consistent and relevant, staff propose the following: 

• Amendments to Bylaw No. 411, 2008: Highway Encroachment Marine / Senkler Area to 
address inconsistencies and remove material not directly relevant to the Bylaw; 

• Rescind Corporate Policy No. 205: Group Wharfage Facilities; and, 
• Adopt new Corporate Policy No. 216: Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines to 

incorporate and consolidate relevant information removed from Bylaw No. 411, 2008 and 
Corporate Policy No. 205. 

 
Wharf Application Fees 
Table 1 compares the current application fees for wharf applications with proposed fees. 
Proposed fees include those directly charged by the Village as well as those charged to the 
Village by VFPA and then passed on to the applicants. For these latter fees, a mark-up of 10% on 
VFPA fees has been applied to partially cover related administration costs incurred by the 
Village. For the application fees charged directly by the Village, previous amounts have been 
consolidated under one application. 
 
Table 1: Current and Proposed Village Application Fees 

TYPE CURRENT PROPOSED 
Wharf Application Fee $2,000 $2,400 Highway Encroachment Agreement Application  $400 
Highway Encroachment Agreement Renewal $400 $400 
Administration Charge on 
VFPA Licence Registration Fee of $300 $0 $25  
Administration Charge 
on VFPA Documentation Fee of $250 $0 $30  
TOTAL APPLICATION FEE $2,800 $2,855 

*Administrative charge for second and subsequent submissions for incomplete applications $500. 
As indicated in Table 2, annual HEA fees currently are greater for group wharf facilities than 
they are for single wharf facilities. The proposed HEA annual fee sets the same rate for both 
types of facilities recognizing that group facilities should be encouraged rather than penalized. It 
is set at 75% of the annual fee charged by VFPA for their Recreational Waterfront Licence. 
While this new amount represents a significant increase from the current rate, it is important to 
note that the HEA annual fees have not experienced any increase in many years and the current 
rates are considered to be substantially lower than fair market value. It is also proposed that the 
Village begin collecting an administrative charge of 10% on the VFPA annual Recreational 
Waterlot Licence fee that will be paid by the Village and passed on to the wharf owner through 
the sublicence agreement. 
 
Staff propose to begin charging the new annual fees for new wharfage facilities immediately. For 
existing wharf facilities, staff propose to begin collecting the new annual fee upon renewal of the 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
October 12, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 2021 10 12 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report.docx 

sublicence agreements. All existing sublicence agreements will be renewed within the next two 
years. 
 
Table 2: Current and Proposed Village Annual Fees 

TYPE CURRENT PROPOSED 
HEA Annual Fee – Single Dock $100 $1,500 HEA Annual Fee – Group Dock $200 
Administrative Charge on VFPA Recreational 
Waterlot Licence Annual Fee of $2,000 $0 $200 

TOTAL PROPOSED ANNUAL FEES $100 - $200 $1,700 
 
Financial Implications 
Previous direction from Council was to ensure that the Bedwell Bay Wharf Program be 
administered on a cost neutral basis so that the Village was not subsidizing the private docks of a 
small number of residents. Current administrative activities include inspections of existing 
facilities, collecting insurance certificates from owners annually and considering applications for 
maintenance and repair of existing facilities. Staff anticipate relatively strong interest in 
applications for new wharfage facilities once the Village begins accepting applications and over 
the next few years until full build-out is achieved. During this period, staff estimate that half of a 
full-time position should be allocated to the Bedwell Bay Wharf Program, not including 
consulting services that may be required to further refine the program and address issues that 
may arise. 
Table 3 summarizes expected revenues to the Village in administering the Bedwell Bay Wharf 
Program based on the proposed fees presented earlier. Application Fees would be collected from 
each wharf owner just once with applications for new wharf facilities or upon renewal of their 
agreements every ten years. The annual fees would be collected each year. The table below does 
not include application fees for any required construction permits. 
 
Table 3: Estimated Revenues from Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 

Type of Fee and Amounts Existing Wharfs 
(36) 

Potential New 
Wharfs (7) 

Wharf Application Fee $2,400  - $16,800  
HEA Renewal Fee $400  $14,400  - 
Administration Charge of 10% on 
VFPA Licence Registration Fee of $300 $25  $900  $175  
Administration Charge of 10% 
on VFPA Documentation Fee of $250 $30  $1,080  $210  
Total Revenue from Application Fees $16,380  $17,185  
Proposed HEA Annual Fee $1,500  $54,000  $10,500  
Administration Charge of 10% on VFPA 
Licence Annual Fee of $2,000 $200  $7,200  $1,400  
Total Annual Revenue $61,200  $11,900  

 
At full build-out of all currently identified potential wharf locations, annual revenues to Village 
of Belcarra for administering the program are estimated at $73,100. 

 



Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Council Report: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program 
October 12, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 2021 10 12 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report.docx 

Next Steps 
The Village website will be updated with the new policies and procedures and handouts will be 
developed summarizing the procedures and fees for applicants. Staff will also begin accepting 
applications for new wharfage facilities in Bedwell Bay when the applicable bylaws are adopted 
and policies are approved. Applications will be processed based on the order they are submitted 
and deemed complete. Staff anticipate reviewing one application at a time with any additional 
complete applications being placed in a queue. Staff will monitor the process and the resources 
allocated to its administration to better inform future updates to the policies, procedures and fees. 
 
Attachments 

• Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment – Marine Ave and Senkler Road Bylaw     
No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021 

• Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw                    
No. 592, 2021 (HEA)  

• Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 216: Bedwell Bay Wharf Application 
Guidelines 

 



 

 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to 
time; 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment 
Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008” be amended: 

a) By removing Section 3 and replacing it with: 
“The prohibitions in Section 2 do not apply to a structure within the area outlined on 
Schedule "B" intended to provide access to an authorized wharf facility if an owner 
of a parcel in Schedule “B” (the “Owner”) agrees to be bound by all the terms of the 
Highway Encroachment Agreement annexed to this Bylaw as Schedule "A" and 
both the Owner and the Village duly execute a Highway Encroachment Agreement.” 

b) By removing Section 1, Schedule A and replacing it with: 
“The Village recognizes that the Licensee has obtained permission from the 
Vancouver Fraser Port Authority to construct a wharf/dock facility and for that 
purpose the Village grants to the Licensee permission to encroach upon that portion 
of Village highway as shown on the sketch plan attached to this Agreement as 
Schedule 1 (Encroachment Area), which has been approved as to form, extent, 
dimensions, area and location by the Village engineer acting reasonably in 
accordance with sound highway and municipal engineering principles, and all 
applicable guidelines, policies and regulations.  Such approval is evidenced by the 
signature of the Village's engineer on Schedule 1, which signature is dated prior to 
the execution of the Agreement by the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer.  
This Licence and the permission given herein are personal to the Licensee.” 

c) By removing Section 2, Schedule A and replacing it with: 
“The Village grants to the Licensee permission to enter in, on and under the 
Encroachment Area to construct access to the wharf/dock facility access such as 
stairs, deck and a landing (hereinafter called the "Works") on the Encroachment 
Area.” 

d) By removing Section 6, Schedule A and replacing it with: 
“The Licensee shall obtain all necessary permits for construction of the Works and 
shall at all times and at the Licensee’s own expense keep and maintain the Works in 
good, sound and safe condition and repair to the satisfaction of the Village, and no 
structural alterations shall be made to the Works other than those described in an 
issued permit.” 

 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler Area 

 Bylaw No. 411, 2008,  
Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 
Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008                                         
Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 Attachment 1 - Bylaw 591, 2021 Highway Encroachment 
Marine Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411 2008 Amendment Bylaw.docx 

 
e) By removing Schedule B1, Schedule B2, Schedule C1, Schedule C2 and Schedule D in 

their entirety; and, 
f) By adding Schedule B – Map of Marine Avenue and Senkler Road Area attached to and 

forming part of this bylaw. 
 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion 
must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed 
section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on 
 
Read a Second Time on 
 
Read a Third Time on 
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 
 

  
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler 
Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008                                         
Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 Attachment 1 - Bylaw 591, 2021 Highway Encroachment 
Marine Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411 2008 Amendment Bylaw.docx 

 
 

Schedule B 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\5.3 Attachment 2 - Bylaw 592, 2021 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 
517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw.docx 

 
 

 
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 
517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 592, 2021”. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended: 

a) By removing the following language from Schedule 5 – Engineering, Public Works, Permit and 
Services: 

Highway Encroachment Application or Renewal $400 

Highway Encroachment annual fee (single wharf) $100 

Highway Encroachment annual fee (group wharf) $200 

Wharf Application fee $2000 

 

b) By adding the following language to Schedule 5 – Engineering, Public Works, Permit and 
Services: 

Highway Encroachment Agreement Renewal $400 

Highway Encroachment annual fee $1500 

Wharf Application fee $2400 

 
If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must 
be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, 
subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on   
 
Adopted by the Council on  
 
 
 

  
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018,  
Amendment Bylaw No. 592, 2021 
 

 
 

Chief Administrative Officer 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018  

Amendment Bylaw No. 592, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



  
 
Title:    Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines 
 

ISSUED BY:  CAO APPROVED BY:    DATE:    

REVISED BY:  APPROVED BY:  DATE:    
 
 
PURPOSE 
 
That the Village of Belcarra (the Village) recognizes that Belcarra property owners who do not 
have direct access to the water wish to make use of the Municipal Land along the north side of 
Marine Avenue for the purposes of owning and operating a Wharf Facility for recreational use. 
The Village also recognizes that Vancouver Fraser Port Authority (VFPA) requires the Village 
consent to issue Recreational Waterlot Licences for private Wharf Facilities located in VFPA 
Foreshore and Waters fronting the Municipal Land. The Village may authorize the use of 
Municipal Land and provide its consent for a private Wharf Facility subject to the policies and 
procedures contained in this Policy and any other applicable policies and regulations. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
The following definitions shall apply to this Policy: 
 
Group Wharfage Facility means a Wharf Facility owned and operated by a Group Wharfage 
Society that may accommodate up to six (6) recreational vessels at any time 
 
Group Wharfage Society means a group of four (4) to six (6) Belcarra property owners who 
have their primary residence within Belcarra that is formed pursuant to the Societies Act (2015) 
for the purpose of owning and operating a Group Wharfage Facility 
 
Municipal Land means land that is owned, possessed or controlled by the Village, the use of 
which requires Village authorization 
 
Policy means Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Guidelines Corporate Policy No. 216; 
 
Recreational Waterlot Licence means the Licence issued by VFPA granting use of the marine 
foreshore and water under certain terms and conditions 
 
Upland Property means the residential property owned in fee simple immediately upland of a 
proposed or existing Wharf Facility as indicated by a projection of the property side property 
lines to the high-water mark and generally considered parallel to the front lot line 
 
VFPA Foreshore and Waters means the foreshore and waters below the highwater mark 
managed by Vancouver Fraser Port Authority 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Corporate Policy No. 216 

Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



Corporate Policy No. 216:  Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report\2021 10 12 Policy No. 
216 Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines.docx 

2 

Waterlot Sublicence means an agreement between the Village and a Single or Group Wharfage 
Society in accordance with the terms and conditions of a Licence Agreement 
 
Wharf Facility means a wharf structure intended to provide moorage for a recreational vessel 
and may include a pier or dock, ramp and float located in VFPA Foreshore and Waters as well as 
structures intended to provide access to the wharf that may include a deck, stairs, and landing on 
Municipal Land 
 
LOCATION FOR A WHARF FACILITY 
 
Council may consider authorizing the use of Municipal Land and consenting to the use of VFPA 
Foreshore and Waters for the purposes of owning and operating Wharf Facilities in locations that 
meet the following criteria: 
 
Single Wharf Facility 
A Wharf Facility proposed by the owner of an Upland Property for their sole use may be 
considered for any of the locations identified in Schedule A. Applications for a Single Wharf 
Facility made by Belcarra property owners other than the owner of the Upland Property will not 
be considered. 
 
Group Wharfage Facility 
A Group Wharfage Facility may be located on Marine Avenue between Kelly Road and Young 
Road as indicated on Schedule A. The Village recognizes that Group Wharfage Facilities may 
confer environmental and land use benefits when compared to Single Wharf Facilities as they 
support a greater number of users on a similar footprint. Consequently, Group Wharfage 
Facilities may also be considered in locations identified in Schedule A for Single Wharf Facilities 
based on the merits of a specific application. 
 
The owner of the Upland Property shall be provided the opportunity to participate in the Group 
Wharfage Society that will own and operate the Group Wharfage Facility. Should the owner of 
the Upland Property decide not to participate, Council may still authorize the Group Wharfage 
Facility. In such cases, the Group Wharfage Society shall have a maximum of five members and 
reserve the sixth membership for the present or subsequent owner of the Upland Property who 
may join at any time. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS 
 
Table 1 summarizes the authorizations required to develop, own and operate a Wharf Facility on 
Municipal Land and VFPA Foreshore and Waters. Additional authorizations may be required for 
individual Wharf Facilities. It is the applicant responsibility to identify and obtain all required 
authorizations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Corporate Policy No. 216:  Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report\2021 10 12 Policy No. 
216 Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines.docx 

3 

Table 1: Authorizations Required for Wharf Facilities 
Issuing 
Authority Application Type Authorizations Purpose 

Village of 
Belcarra 

Wharf Application 

Highway 
Encroachment 
Agreement 

Occupy Municipal 
Land for access to a 
Wharf Facility 

Waterlot Sublicence* 
Occupy VFPA 
Foreshore and Waters 
for a Wharf Facility 

Road Use Permit 
Application Road Use Permit Construct access for 

Wharf Facility 
Vancouver Fraser 
Port Authority 

Project Permit 
Application VFPA Project Permit Construct a wharf for 

a Wharf Facility 
*Note: The Waterlot Sublicence is subject to the Village obtaining a Recreational Waterlot Licence from 
VFPA 
 
WHARF APPLICATION PROCEDURES 
 
Applicants are required to complete the Wharf Application found in Schedule B of this Policy. 
All Wharf Applications will be considered by Council in accordance with the procedure outlined 
in Schedule C of this Policy. 
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
The use of Municipal Land by an owner of an Upland Property or a Group Wharfage Society 
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained in: 
 

a) A Recreational Waterlot Licence agreement between the Village and VFPA; 
b) A Waterlot Sublicence agreement between the Village and the owner of the Upland 

Property or the Group Wharfage Society; 
c) A Highway Encroachment Agreement between the Village and the owner of the Upland 

Property or a Group Wharfage Society; and, 
d) For Group Wharfage Facilities, the Group Wharfage Society Constitution and Bylaws 

adopted by each Group Wharf Society. 
 
Applicants should request copies of the standard versions of the above noted documents from the 
Village for review prior to submitting their applications. 
 
RECREATIONAL WATERLOT LICENCE AND SUBLICENCE AREA 
 
The area that is subject to a Recreational Waterlot Licence and Sublicence shall be contained 
within the side lot line projections of the Upland Property.  Should the side lot lines converge, 
then the licence area should be configured to avoid or minimize encroachment into the side lot 
line projections of adjacent properties. The width of a Recreational Waterlot Licence shall be 
limited to not more than 15.24 meters (50 feet) unless site specific conditions warrant otherwise. 
 
 
 
 



Corporate Policy No. 216:  Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines 
 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report\2021 10 12 Policy No. 
216 Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines.docx 

4 

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
 
All structures shall conform to all applicable bylaws (as amended) and regulations, including: 

a) Village of Belcarra Bylaw 411, 2008: Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler Area 
b) Village of Belcarra Bylaw 510, 2018: Zoning Bylaw 
c) Village of Belcarra Bylaw 355, 2003: Building and Plumbing Code Regulation 
d) Village of Belcarra Bylaw 518, 2018: Traffic and Parking Regulations 
e) Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 147: Minimum Safety Requirements for Private 

Foreshore Access 
f) Vancouver Fraser Port Authority Recreational Dock Guidelines for Burrard Inlet 

 
Construction of all structures shall be consistent above and below the high-water mark. A self-
latching and self-lockable gate and signage appropriate for liability and insurance purposes is 
required at the point of land access to a structure on the water. 
 
LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
Each ‘Group Wharfage Society’ shall maintain a minimum of $4 million liability insurance 
which includes the ‘Village of Belcarra’, the ‘Vancouver Fraser Port Authority’, and ‘Her 
Majesty the Queen in the Right of Canada’ as additional named insureds. This liability insurance 
requirement shall be subject to review from time-to-time by the Village, along with advice of the 
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia, and adjusted as necessary. 
 
ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
On an annual basis, the Village will:  

a) Collect fees and proof of insurance from each owner of the Upland Property or Group 
Wharfage Society as per all agreements with the Village and the Village Fees and 
Charges Bylaw; 

b) Submit payments to the Village for VFPA for Recreational Waterfront Sublicence 
agreements 

c) Monitor improvements on Municipal Land for safety and maintenance; 
d) Confirm Highway Encroachment Agreement requirements; and, 
e) Confirm Group Wharfage Society requirements including a copy of the Society annual 

report as filed with ‘B.C. Registry of Societies’ confirming the Society is in good 
standing; and the names, contact information, and residency status of its current 
members. 

 
COUNCIL DISCRETION 
 
Despite provisions of this Policy, Council shall have discretion reject or withhold, pending 
required changes, an application for a Wharf Facility or Group Wharfage Facility or to approve 
an application that does not conform to this Policy should Council determine there are 
exceptional circumstances connected to an application. 
 
 



Bay

Bedwell

V
F
P
A
 
B
O

U
N

D

A
R
Y

Existing:

Potential:

TOTAL:6

0

6

SINGLE/GROUP WHARF ZONE

AREA 1

Existing:

Potential:

TOTAL:13

2

11

SINGLE WHARF ZONE

AREA 4

Existing:

Potential:

TOTAL:10

3

7

SINGLE WHARF ZONE

AREA 3

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA

FRAC. TP. WEST

11

S

E

N

K

L

E

R

 

 

R

O

A

D

W

A

T

S

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

8

LCP 2

21

"A"

23
4

56

78

20
19

18
17

16

C

AREM.9

REM.14
15

PARCEL 48

B

A

10

9

21

REM. 1

20

7

8
9

12

13

14
15

16

17 18 19

5
4

3

2

1

19

1716

N 1/2

11

14

10

S 1/2

15

13

12

18

10

8

7

6
5

LCP 1

22

3

21
20

19
18

17
11

12

1

13

14 15
16

22

10

4

56

3 2

1

9 8
7

3

4

2

5
1

9

10

11

7

30

29

1

2
3 4 65

14
13

12

1

6

S

A

S

A

M

A

T

/

 

L

O

W

E

R

W

I

N

D

E

R

M

E

R

E

C

R

E

E

K

SEC. 23

FRAC. TP. WEST

OF TP. 39 W.C.M.

SECTION 24

SECTION 25

OF TP. 39 W.C.M.

S.E. 1/4 SECTION 25

B

E

D

W

E

L

L

 

B

A

Y

 

R

O

A

D

T

A

T

L

O

W

 

R

O

A

D

K

E

L

L

Y

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

M

A
R

I
N

E
 
 
 
A
V
E
N

U

E

B

O

S

T

O

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

B

O

S

T

O

C

K

 

R

O

A

D

M
A
R
I
N

E
     A

V
E
N

U
E

B

E

D

W

E

L

L

 

B

A

Y

 

R

O

A

D

Y

O

U

N

G

 

 

 

R

O

A

D

W

E

S

T

 

R

O

A

D

V

F

P

A

 

B

O

U

N

D

A

R

Y

V

F
P
A

 
B

O

U

N

D

A

R

Y

V

F

P

A

 

B

O

U

N

D

A

R

Y

Existing:

Potential:

TOTAL:15

2

13

SINGLE/GROUP WHARF ZONE

AREA 2

DWG.

No. Date Dr'n Ch'dREVISION

REV.

DESIGN BY

DRAWN BY

DATE

SCALE

VFPA SITE

Ref. No. R E F E R E N C E 

SIZE

B

SHEET

APPROVED

D
A

T
E

:
 
2

0
2

0
/
1

0
/
1

9
 
-
 
2

:
0

8
p

m

P
A

T
H

:
 
H

:
\
P

l
a

n
s
\
S

k
e

t
c
h

 
P

l
a

n
s
\
2

0
2

0
-
s
k
\
\
S

2
0

2
0

-
0

8
4

.
d

w
g

T
I
T

L
E

 
B

L
O

C
K

:
 
B

L
-
T

B
.
D

w
g

VANCOUVER FRASER PORT AUTHORITY

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

vancouver

PORT of

BEDWELL BAY

 RECREATIONAL DOCKS

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA

SKETCH PLAN No. S2020-084
1 of 1

KCHAN

22-SEPT-2020

NTS

BEL116

LEGEND:

POTENTIAL WHARF SITE

EEL GRASS (DATA PROVIDED BY

          TSLEIL-WAUTUTH NATION)

LOW WATER MARK (2010)

N

NOTES:

.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.C. HYDRO RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 31854

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 31854

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODHAVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOORING BUOY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOAT ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00600F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00601F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00583F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00479F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.A STEWART

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00278F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.P. & S.J. WILKENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00119F-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.G. & L.J. FRASER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00179F-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00111F-007

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00603F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.H. & K.K. PEREY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00166F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00050F-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00354F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. LIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.L.& S.A.HAZLETT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLECK WHARF SOCIETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00151F-003

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.F. MARCUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00307F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00307F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORSBERG WHARF ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00308F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
KAWABATI RECREATIONAL CLUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
DREW'S WHARFAGE ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00024F-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
STICKY BEAKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHARFAGE ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00346F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
MCRAE'S WHARFAGE ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00164F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.M. WAGNER AND R. KAMSTRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00164F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.D. & L.J. SAVAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  BEL116-00324F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.H. WIRSIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00145F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00070F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00097F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
A. BISMEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUN DOG YACHT CLUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00431F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATLANTIS WHARFAGE ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00481F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00355F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.P.COLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00371F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.L.& J.A. EVANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00064F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.J.& F.K.CARLSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
L. FENTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00188F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00392F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.T. BRIGGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.D.CRIDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016085 B.C. LTD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.M.DRYSDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00231F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.& K. DEGRAAF

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00336F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. & S. STRACHAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-11034F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-00289F-002

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.P. & G.R. DROULIS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.B. LUAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-11024F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRUNKEN CRAB DOCK ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-11036F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.J. BROWNING AND K.C. DOUGLAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.C. HYDRO RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 31854

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODHAVEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3014

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN      3014

AutoCAD SHX Text
POSTING   PLAN   DF-S-150845

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN   56936

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILING  D-81896

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 70515

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N                    3 0 1 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 3014

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK    37

AutoCAD SHX Text
B L O C K  4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK  5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.L. 7637

AutoCAD SHX Text
POSTING     PLAN     34776

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN  3014

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILING   BE 45071

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILING  B 54979

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.R.W.   PLAN LMP9276

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N                       3 0 1 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN    47012

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12406

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13545

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N             3 0 1 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
F I L I N G    D. F. - S - 1 5 0 8 4 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N      7 5 3 0 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N   3 0 1 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN 31854

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL116-11057F-001

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNBULL AND JILLINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA RUCKMAN'S WHARFAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA WOODHAVEN BEACH CLUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA SWIFT HERON SOCIETY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA MAIN AVENUE WHARFAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA TSUYUKI

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORT MOODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF PORT MOODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY    OF    BURNABY

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDWELL BAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
229

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
543

AutoCAD SHX Text
575

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELCARRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
471

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
551

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.R. #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
469

AutoCAD SHX Text
611

AutoCAD SHX Text
187

AutoCAD SHX Text
188

AutoCAD SHX Text
189

AutoCAD SHX Text
218

AutoCAD SHX Text
217

AutoCAD SHX Text
191

AutoCAD SHX Text
233

AutoCAD SHX Text
347

AutoCAD SHX Text
203

AutoCAD SHX Text
202

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
349

AutoCAD SHX Text
350

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
226

AutoCAD SHX Text
256

AutoCAD SHX Text
219

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
221

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
214

AutoCAD SHX Text
215

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
626

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH VANCOUVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE NORTH-WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF MARINE AVENUE IS DEFINED BY THE NATURAL BOUNDARY, AND HERE IS REPRESENTED BY A LINE DERIVED FROM VFPA AERIAL MAPPING.; THE EXACT LOCATION IS SUBJECT TO SURVEY BY A BRITISH COLUMBIA LAND SURVEYOR. THE NATURAL BOUNDARY OF MARINE AVE. IS ALSO THE BOUNDARY BETWEEN THE ROAD AND THE BED AND FORESHORE, OWNED BY THE CROWN IN RIGHT OF CANADA AS REPRESENTED BY THE VANCOUVER FRASER PORT AUTHORITY.. 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Schedule A - 10-2020

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



Schedule B 

     

Highway Encroachment Agreement Application  
New ________ Renewal________ 

 
Applicant  

Address Postal Code 

Phone Number  

Email Address  

 
Property Owner (if different from above)  

Address Postal Code 

Phone Number   

Email Address   

 
Project Information 
Location Address 

Legal Description 

New Construction Value  
Project Description (Applies to new construction) 
 
 
 
Describe Existing Works and/or Proposed New Construction Works 
 
 
 
Environmental Implications (Applies to new construction, describe aspects of the proposed works that could 
have environmental implications. Attach a detailed description including drawings and plans as well as proposed 
mitigation as appropriate) 
 
 
 
Will the project include off site impacts (such as noise, traffic, dust, drainage, views)? (Applies 
to new construction) 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Wharf/Highway Encroachment Agreement Renewal Application 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report\20201 10 12 
Policy No. 216 - Schedule B - Wharf Application HEA New-Renewal.doc 
 2 

Does the project affect any known historical or archaeological features? (Applies to new 
construction) 
 
 
REQUIRED DOCUMENTS IN SUPPORT OF ALL APPLICATIONS: 
□ Copy of Title Search for the upland made within the past 30 days 
□ Site Plan including dimensions and surveyed waterlot boundary showing all existing 

structures and proposed new construction for both the encroachment area and the waterlot 
□ Photos of all existing structures located within the encroachment area and waterlot 
□ Elevation drawings of all structures for both the encroachment area and the waterlot 

(new construction proposal) 
□ Construction drawings (new construction proposal) 
 
DOCUMENTS REQUIRED FOR GROUP WHARFAGE FACILITY APPLICATIONS: 
□ Letter from upland owner indicating their involvement in the Group Wharf Society 
□ List of group wharfage society members and property addresses 
□ Draft group wharfage society constitution and bylaws signed by all members 
 
FEES: 
□ Wharf Application Fee (for new wharf facilities) $________________ 
□ Highway Encroachment Agreement Renewal Fee $________________ 
□ Title Search Fee (if applicable) $________________ 
 
PROPERTY OWNER(S) SIGNATURE or AUTHORIZED SOCIETY SIGNATORY: 
 
   
Print Name  Signature 

 
   
Print Name  Signature 

 
   
Print Name  Signature 

 
   
Date of application submission   

 
 
 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act Notification: 
The information on this form is collected under the general authority of the Local Government Act. It is related directly, required and used by 
the Village f Belcarra, to administer the Highway Encroachment Agreement application process. The access and privacy provisions of the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act apply to the information collected on this form. Please contact the Information and 
Privacy Officer at 604-937-4100 if you have any questions.  



 
 
 
 

  
 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This document provides a general overview of the Village of Belcarra Wharf Application 
procedures for single and group wharf facilities for recreational use along Marine Avenue and 
Senkler Road in Belcarra. They should be read together with Corporate Policy No. 216: Bedwell 
Bay Wharf Application Guidelines and Bylaw No. 411, 2008: Highway Encroachments 
Marine/Senkler Area.  
 
References to Vancouver Fraser Port Authority processes are provided for convenience only. 
Applicants should contact Vancouver Fraser Port Authority directly to discuss the suitability of 
their proposed wharf facility and application procedures. Additional authorizations not indicated 
here may also be required before applicants may develop a wharf facility. Applicants are 
responsible for identifying and obtaining all necessary authorizations. 
 
Abbreviations used in this document include: 
 
Council Village of Belcarra Mayor and Council 
HEA  Highway Encroachment Agreement 
Applicant Owner of Upland Property, Group Wharfage Society and/or their agent 
VFPA  Vancouver Fraser Port Authority 
Village  Village of Belcarra 
 
PROCEDURES 
 

STEP RESPONSIBLE 
PARTY 

ACTION 

1 Applicant 

Reviews Village and VFPA policies and guidelines to assess 
suitability of their proposed Wharf Facility or Group Wharfage 
Facility. Incomplete applications will be returned and will be 
processed only as a complete application and only after the 
completed applications before it are fully reviewed. 

2 Applicant Submits Wharf Application and applicable fee to Village 

3 Village 

Staff review Wharf Application and prepare report to Council 
recommending one of the following three options: 
• Approve application subject to: 

o Applicant obtains a VFPA Project Permit 
o Applicant forms a Group Wharfage Society as per the 

Societies Act (applications for a Group Wharfage 
Facility) 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Schedule C 

Wharf Application Procedures for     
Single & Group Wharf Facilities 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Schedule C



 
Wharf Application Procedures for Single & Group Wharf Facilities 
Schedule C 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 10 12\Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report\2021 10 12  Polciy No. 
216 Schedule C - Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Procedures for Single & Group Wharf Facilities.docx 

 
 
TIME OF REVIEW 
 
The Village will endeavour to process Wharf Applications in a timely manner with available 
resources. Applications will be reviewed one at a time in the order that a complete application is 
received. The Village will advise applicants in advance of when their application will be brought 
to Council for consideration of approval. 

 
 
 
 

 

o Village and VFPA enter into a licence agreement for the 
waterlot 

• Reject application 
• Staff be directed to seek more information from Applicant 

4 Council Receives report and makes a decision on the Wharf Application 

5 Village Provides letter to Applicant advising of Council decision 

6 Applicant Prepares and submits VFPA project permit application 

7 VFPA Reviews and makes decision on application 

8 Applicant 
Forms Group Wharf Society in accordance with BC Societies Act 
(for group wharf facilities only) 

9 Applicant 

Provides the Village with: 
• A copy of the VFPA project permit 
• Sublicence Application Fee 
• Sublicence Annual Fee for first year 
• HEA Annual Fee for first year 
• Proof of required liability insurance 
• Group Wharf Society’s adopted Constitution and Bylaws 

10 Village Reviews Applicant documentation for completeness 

11 Village 
Pays recreational waterlot licence fees to VFPA and obtains licence 
– Fee is charged back to the Applicant 

12 Village Executes HEA and sublicence with Applicant  

13 Applicant 
Applies to Village for any necessary permits to construct access 
structures within HEA area 

14 Village Reviews permit application and makes a decision on permit issuance 

15 Applicant Constructs wharf facility 

16 Village 
Conducts final inspection of new construction in HEA area and 
approves occupancy 



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
File No. 0360-20-WSC

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Ian Devlin, Chair, Water CommitteeSeptember 26, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
6.4







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6


	3.1 2021 09 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	CARRIED
	CARRIED
	5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated September 27, 2021,  regarding Tree Committee Recommendations
	L. Dysart outlined the report and noted that these recommendations will be completed  as time permits. Discussion ensued.
	Moved by:   Councillor Clark
	That staff advertise a Request for Proposal (RFP) for 2 price quotes on paving that  include:
	 A full depth mill and fill, and 75mm asphalt regrading gravel base for Midden Road  and Belcarra Bay Road from Midden Road to the 3 way stop sign; and
	 A full depth mill and fill, and 75mm asphalt regrading gravel base for Midden Road.
	CARRIED
	That staff remove the Resident Only signs and retain the policy as seasonal, from       June 1 to September 30 each year.
	DEFEATED
	Mayor Ross, Councillors Clark, Drake and Snell voted in opposition
	Moved by:  Councillor Clark
	Seconded by:  Councillor Wilder
	That staff keep the “Resident Only Parking and Permit Only Parking” signs posted in  the Village Hall parking lot until a Public Information Meeting on Parking is held.
	CARRIED
	Mayor’s Reports
	CARRIED
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2021 09 27 Managing Trees Views Landscapes Bylaw No. 589 2021.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the Management of Trees, Views and Landscapes
	Read a First Time on September 7, 2021
	Read a Second Time on September 27, 2021
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Managing Trees, Views
	& Landscapes Bylaw No. 589, 2021

	5.2 L. Dysart - Introduction of a Development Enquiry Research Fee.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: October 12, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Introduction of a Development Enquiry Research Fee & Changes to the            Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021
	Attachment
	Attachment 1: Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021

	5.2 Attachment 1 - Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment Bylaw - October 2021.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to introduce a Development Enquiry Research Fee for complex enquiries.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 590, 2021

	5.3 2021 10 12 Bedwell Bay Wharf Program Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: October 12, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Bedwell Bay Wharf Program

	5.3 Attachment 1 - Bylaw 591, 2021 Highway Encroachment Marine Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411 2008 Amendment Bylaw.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Highway Encroachment Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008, Amendment Bylaw No. 591, 2021”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Marine/Senkler Area Bylaw No. 411, 2008” be amended:
	a) By removing Section 3 and replacing it with:
	“The prohibitions in Section 2 do not apply to a structure within the area outlined on Schedule "B" intended to provide access to an authorized wharf facility if an owner of a parcel in Schedule “B” (the “Owner”) agrees to be bound by all the terms of...
	b) By removing Section 1, Schedule A and replacing it with:
	“The Village recognizes that the Licensee has obtained permission from the Vancouver Fraser Port Authority to construct a wharf/dock facility and for that purpose the Village grants to the Licensee permission to encroach upon that portion of Village h...

	c) By removing Section 2, Schedule A and replacing it with:
	“The Village grants to the Licensee permission to enter in, on and under the Encroachment Area to construct access to the wharf/dock facility access such as stairs, deck and a landing (hereinafter called the "Works") on the Encroachment Area.”
	d) By removing Section 6, Schedule A and replacing it with:
	“The Licensee shall obtain all necessary permits for construction of the Works and shall at all times and at the Licensee’s own expense keep and maintain the Works in good, sound and safe condition and repair to the satisfaction of the Village, and no...

	e) By removing Schedule B1, Schedule B2, Schedule C1, Schedule C2 and Schedule D in their entirety; and,
	f) By adding Schedule B – Map of Marine Avenue and Senkler Road Area attached to and forming part of this bylaw.
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on

	5.3 Attachment 2 - Bylaw 592, 2021 Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw.pdf
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018, Amendment Bylaw No. 592, 2021”.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	a) By removing the following language from Schedule 5 – Engineering, Public Works, Permit and Services:
	b) By adding the following language to Schedule 5 – Engineering, Public Works, Permit and Services:
	If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph,...
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	Adopted by the Council on

	5.3 Attachment 3 - 2021 10 12 Policy No. 216 Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines with Schedules.pdf
	Title:    Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS
	WHARF APPLICATION PROCEDURES
	Applicants are required to complete the Wharf Application found in Schedule B of this Policy. All Wharf Applications will be considered by Council in accordance with the procedure outlined in Schedule C of this Policy.
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	2021 10 12 Policy No. 216 Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines.pdf
	Title:    Bedwell Bay Wharf Application Guidelines
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS
	WHARF APPLICATION PROCEDURES
	Applicants are required to complete the Wharf Application found in Schedule B of this Policy. All Wharf Applications will be considered by Council in accordance with the procedure outlined in Schedule C of this Policy.
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS





